ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 11, 2002
3:43 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Sharon Ci ssna

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 407
"An Act relating to the certificate of need program"”

- MOVED CSHB 407(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23

Proposi ng anendnents to Uniform Rule 20 of the Alaska State
Legislature; and providing for an effective date for the
amendnent s.

- MOVED HCR 23 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 464
"An Act relating to statewi de school district correspondence
study prograns.”
- MOVED CSHB 464(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 407
SHORT TI TLE: CERTI FI CATE OF NEED PROGRAM
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2002



02/ 13/ 02

02/ 13/ 02
03/ 04/ 02
03/ 13/02
03/ 14/ 02
03/ 14/ 02
03/18/02
03/ 19/ 02
03/ 19/ 02
03/19/02
03/ 21/ 02
03/ 21/ 02
03/ 21/ 02
03/ 22/ 02
03/ 22/ 02

03/ 22/ 02

03/ 22/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
03/ 28/ 02
03/ 28/ 02

04/ 02/ 02
04/ 02/ 02

04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 09/ 02
04/ 09/ 02

04/ 11/ 02

2232
2232

2469
2530

2593

2638
2638

2638

2638

BILL: HCR 23

SHORT TI TLE: LEG SLATI VE
SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 11/ 02

02/ 11/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02

EDUCATI ON

Jr n- Page
2204

2204

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

NN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN ~

N NN AN AN AN N ~

I IZIZIZI ZII ZIZIIIII I ZIIIIIIIIIIIIIZI Z

~—

COMM TTEES:

I3z 2

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

CRA, HES

COSPONSOR('S): JAMES
COSPONSOR( S) : SCALZI

CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard
COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124
Moved Qut of Conmittee

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA RPT 2DP 2NR 3AM

DP: SCALZI, MEYER, NR GUESS,
HALCRQ,

AM KERTTULA, MJRKOWBKI ,
MORGAN

FN1: (HSS)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
-- Meeting Cancel ed --

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SPLI' T HOUSE HESS

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
EDU, HES
EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120
Moved Qut of Conmmttee
M NUTE( EDU)

April 11, 2002



02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02

02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 09/ 02
04/ 09/ 02

04/ 11/ 02

2227
2227

2227
2228

BILL: HB 464

I ITTIT3T 33

~

EDU RPT 6DP

DP: GREEN, WLSON, JOULE
GUESS,

STEVENS, BUNDE

FN1: ZERQ( H. EDU)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
-- Meeting Cancel ed --

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOOL DI STRI CT CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 19/ 02

02/ 19/ 02
02/ 22/ 02
02/ 27/ 02
03/07/02
03/ 07/ 02
03/ 07/ 02
03/ 13/02

03/ 13/02
03/ 14/ 02
03/ 14/ 02
03/ 14/ 02
03/ 19/ 02
03/19/02
03/ 21/ 02
03/ 21/ 02
03/ 22/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
03/ 26/ 02
04/ 02/ 02
04/ 02/ 02
04/ 11/ 02

REPRESENTATI VE( S) JAVES

Jrn- Page
2313

2313

2370
2416

2530

2530

2655

W TNESS REG STER

~—

NN AN NN NN

I T2 Z

NN NN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
EDU, HES
COSPONSOR('S): DYSON

REFERRALS CHANCGED TO HES, EDU

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HES)

COSPONSOR('S) : COGHI LL,
KOHRI NG, GREEN,

FOSTER

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
-- Meeting Canceled --

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
-- Meeting Cancel ed --
COSPONSOR( S) : FATE

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
<Bi || Cancel ed>

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

ELMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Commi ssi oner

Department of Health and Soci al

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

Servi ces

April 11, 2002



P. O Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 407; expl ained departnent's
fiscal notes and enphasi zed that there will be a | arge inpact.

KAREN McCARTHY, Staff

to Representative Con Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As conmittee aide for the House Speci al
Committee on Education, sponsor of HCR 23, presented the
resol uti on and answered questi ons.

CARL ROCSE, Executive Director

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

316 West El eventh Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801- 1510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 23.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-31, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:43 p.m
Representatives Dyson, W son, Coghi I I, St evens, Kohri ng,
Cssna, and Joule were present at the call to order. [ For
mnutes on the overview presentation from the Al aska Suicide
Preventi on Council heard jointly wth the Senate Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee, see the
3:03 p.m mnutes for this date.]

HB 407- CERTI FI CATE OF NEED PROGRAM

CHAI R DYSON announced the first order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 407, "An Act relating to the certificate of need program™

Number 0110
REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING noved to adopt version 22-1LS1389\P,

Laut erbach, 4/11/02, as the work draft. There being no
obj ection, Version P was before the conmttee.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2002



CHAI R DYSON offered his understanding that Version P is the sane
as Ver si on O wth [ Representative Cissna's concept ual
Amendnent 1] that was adopted at the April 9 hearing.

Number 0200

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 7: Delete lines 1 — 4.

Page 7, line 1:

| nsert:
COVMPREHENSI VE HEALTH PLAN; LI M TATI ONS. The plan
requi red under AS 47.05.010(b), enacted by sec. 11 of

this Act,

(1) It is not intended by the legislature to
be updated periodically;

(2) shall be prepared by the Departnent of
Health and Social Services by January 1, 2003, and a
copy of it shall be given by the departnent to the
| egi sl ature by that date: and

(3) shall be prepared by using staff and
other resources of the departnment that are generally
available to perform the duties of the departnent
Wi t hout an additional appropriation specifically
designated for preparation of the plan or w thout an
additional appropriation to fund indirect inpact of
exi sting personnel or resources.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON obj ected for purposes of discussion.
Number 0220

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained that Anmendnent 1 would add
"relating to conprehensive health planning® to the title.
Referring to the fact that the amendnent to Version O at the
April 9 hearing had been conceptual, he said:

We adopted this by conceptual anendnent, basically,
and ... | wanted to look it over and ask |egal
drafting to look it over, and this is basically what
[ woul d] cone back. And the only thing that we didn't
| ook at was the date, and Representative Ci ssna had
: regi stered sone concern about that. And |I'm open
to that discussion. But at this point, it would take

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2002



the plan that's required and ... then put it in these
three bullets, if you will.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that Amendnent 1 [paragraph (1)]
calls for a one-tine plan; it is not intended to be updated
periodically, which is in contrast to what is already in
statute, to his recollection. [Under paragraph (2)] it would be
prepared by [the Departnent of] Health and Social services, and
the date would be 2003, as adopted [in the anendnent to
Version O at the previous hearing]. He indicated he wanted it
to be very clear that this [plan is to be developed] within the
resources of the Departnent of Health and Social Services, which
par agr aph (3) acconplishes.

Number 0325

CHAI R DYSON asked whether Representative Cissna was in basic
agreenent with Representative Coghill's Anendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA replied that she was in agreenent, but had
real concerns about the date. She indicated she'd requested a
partial copy of the health plan dated June 1984; departnent
personnel had infornmed her of what is in place that could be

drawn on for a [future plan]. She stated that there are gaping
holes [in the current state health plan]. She asked if the
departnment could speak to this matter. She suggested that an

understanding of the mssing pieces would give nenbers an idea
of what is reasonable timng for using existing services.

Number 0450

ELVMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and
Social Services, told the commttee he didn't believe the date
to be a relevant matter because, briefly, "No noney, no plan."
He said the [1984] report was the last one done by the

depart nment. He explained that rarely a week goes by in the
departnment in which soneone does not say, "I wish we had a
conprehensive health plan.". If the departnent had the
resources, it would have done a plan. In the absence of

additional resources to develop a conprehensive plan, M.
Li ndstrom sai d he thought the plan would not be acconpli shed.

Nunber 0519

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said she was uncertain about the date.
She remarked, "I really care about Al aska and that we survive as
a state in sone kind of not-third-world category.” Referencing

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2002



the [old health plan] wth its problens and the preceding
overview presentation by the Al aska Suicide Prevention Council,
she again enphasized the need for a plan. As for the bill,
Representative Cissna said she sees "two perfectly wonderful
sides,” without a way to discern the right policy; she expressed
doubt that the commttee could arrive at good policy w thout any
information, which is lacking in critical areas. For exanpl e,
there is no health systens data; it doesn't exist.

Nunmber 0599

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that there will be a change
in the adm nistration [because the governor's term is up] and
suggested that if this admnistration is going to say, "No way,"
it mght be good to [extend the date to 2004]. He conveyed his
inclination to allow the date to change to 2004 if the
departnment is required to use existing resources.

CHAI R DYSON offered his conviction that Al aska needs to do sone
conprehensive planning in nental health, senior care, health-
service delivery in urban and rural areas, prenatal alcohol

poi soning, child abuse, and alcohol abuse. He stated his
intention of joining [Representative C ssna] in holding sone
interim hearings on this matter. He added that other bills in
the commttee, pertaining to planning, won't nake it [through
the legislative process this session]. He deferred to

Representative Cissna with regard to the date.
Number 0708

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA said no area is as needing of effort as
the nedical health [planning] area. She pointed out that nental
health does have a conprehensive plan, as do many areas. She
added, "W really are just ragged in the fastest-grow ng sector
of our econony, which is really pretty scary. And | agree wth
you: this sumrer, you're on. Let's go for 2004."

CHAIR DYSON announced, "Let t he record refl ect t hat
Representative Cissna noves that we amend Anendnent 1, line 12,
to January [1,] 2004."

Number 0755
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS obj ected, saying he didn't see the point
of changing it back. He noted that this is just what was done

at the last neeting - it was changed from 2004 to 2003. He said
his concern at that tine was that a lot is being asked to be

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2002



done; however, it is not unreasonable to expect that this be
done by 2003. He offered that if the premse is that things
will be different in a new admnistration, why not sinply
consider this bill next year?

CHAIR DYSON said the amendnent from Representative G ssna had
been presented suddenly on [April 9], and that perhaps it was
acted upon with | ess than due diligence. He added:

Several of us have had time to think about it sone
nor e. The reason we did a title change today was to
make sure that Representative G ssna's anendnent on
Tuesday did not fail for lack of a broad enough title.

But it is an anendnent to a bill largely ained ..
on a different subject. So ... you could certainly
argue that a conprehensive study belonged in a bill of

its own, but the reason we're dealing with this one
now is because [of] the interest in nodifying the
certificate of need that's cone up this year.

CHAI R DYSON acknow edged that Representative C ssna and others
recogni ze that having better information and conprehensive
planning would be a valuable conponent in evaluating CONs
[certificates of need]. He expressed his belief that the bill's
sponsor is interested in seeing the bill nmove forward this year.
When these two subjects were linked, he said, the commttee
wound up dealing with the date. He offered his perception that
the real issue is whether it is reasonable to expect - with very
limted resources - to have a valuable product that is able to
be acconplished by January.

Nunber 0928

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA expressed her view of a "conplete tie"
between an evaluation tool and the plan. She said, "I don't
have the tools to meke that decision, and |I|'ve asked the
departnent, and they don't have the tools to make ... that
deci sion. ™ She said perhaps other nenbers felt confortable

making [this decision], but she didn't.

CHAI R DYSON said he would argue that this is why Representative
Ci ssna's amendnent carri ed.

Number 0971

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE offered his understanding that when the
anendnent passed [on April 9] wth the 2003 date, that was

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2002



assum ng an acconpanying fiscal note; the 2004 date and the

clarification that this will be done with existing resources is
the difference between the two dates. He said, "This way, the
bill noves forward wthout a fiscal note, giving the departnent

18 nonths to do sonething with its existing resources, as
opposed to doing sonething in 6 nonths with no additional
resources." He specified that he was speaking in favor of the
anendnent to Anendnent 1 [to change the date to 2004].

CHAI R DYSON voi ced his understanding the Representative Ci ssna's
anmendnent [on April 9] called for the plan to be conpleted with
existing resources and hadn't anticipated a fiscal note. He
asked whet her Representative Stevens maintained his objection to
t he amendnent to [ Anendnent 1].

Number 1046

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said yes. He added that Al aska is facing
enornmous problens statew de such as the "salnon disaster.” He
noted that these problens need serious study, and [if the
anendnent to Anmendnent 1 failed] would be dealt with via a
report to the legislature by January 2003. In response to
Representative Ci ssna, he said he thought he would support the
2003 date, but indicated he wanted to hear nore about it.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA wi t hdrew t he amendnent to Anendnent 1.
Number 1130

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was any objection to Anmendnent 1.
Hearing no objection, he announced that Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

MR. LINDSTROM in response to Chair Dyson, said the departnent
had prepared two fiscal notes, both dated 4/10/02. One is for
$100, 500 for health planning and facilities managenent, and the
other, fromthe D vision of Medical Assistance, is in the anpount
of $4.6 mllion, for Medicaid services.

CHAI R DYSON observed that Representative Coghill had put before
the coonmttee a zero fiscal note. He requested an expl anati on.

Number 1210
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL called his zero fiscal note a "direct
challenge to the admnistration's fiscal note.” He said a |ot

has to do wwth how he figured the growh of the econony and the
way some Medicaid reinbursenents are cal cul ated. He asked the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2002



committee to recognize that this will not have an actuari al

inpact on the state. He said he recognizes the departnent's
concerns, but drew attention to words in the departnent's fisca
note such as my, if, expected, estinmates, assunptions, and
unknowns.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether it is correct that even if the bill
passes in its present form there will be no inpact until new
facilities are built, in use, and inpacting Medicaid rates and
rei nbursenent rates.

Nunber 1293

MR. LI NDSTROM agreed, but pointed out that every fiscal note
[from a departnent] is based on assunptions regardi ng "sonebody
doing sonething.” The departnent's fiscal note is based on the
best information the departnent has, he said, and on what the
departnment believes is nost likely to happen, based on the
letters of interest and CON applications. In this case,
however, the decisions of whether to build facilities wll be
i ndependent busi ness decisions that the state doesn't control.

MR,  LINDSTROM added that the committee has heard wdely
divergent testinmony on the inpacts of the bill. Sone
passi onately believe [HB 407] is the best thing that could
happen to health care in the state, while others believe it is
the death knell for the health care infrastructure in nany
conmuni ties.

Number 1346

MR. LI NDSTROM noted that everyone believes this bill wll have a
significant inpact; the departnment shares this opinion. He
offered that the departnent could not provide nenbers wth
certainty about the exact costs. He referenced his earlier
testinony that a lack of data has hindered [nore accurate]
esti mat es. He stated, "There is ... rarely a bill that goes
through the legislature where it is nore abundantly clear that,
yes, there will be a fiscal inpact, and it will accrue to the

Medi cai d program because the Medicaid program i nsures one out of
six Alaskans ... in this state.™

MR.  LINDSTROM referenced an analysis done on behalf of the
Tanana Valley dinic by Information Insights, dated March 25,

which ultimately concluded that over time the bill - at |east
under the assunptions given - would [result in] a savings to the
Medi caid program He added, "Nevertheless, this analysis

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2002



provided by Tanana Valley dinic indicated in the first year
there would probably be an additional cost of $200,000 to the

Medicaid program if one facility was built in Fairbanks." He
expressed doubt that anyone knew for sure how many facilities
woul d be built. "There is unanimty, M. Chairman, that this
bill is going to have a fiscal inpact," he concl uded.

CHAI R DYSON concurred, noting that nenbers indeed had heard
conflicting testinony, including testinony about other states.
He announced his intention, out of respect for the departnent,
to send the bill forward with all three fiscal notes.

CHAIR DYSON called for an at-ease at 4:08 p.m He called the
nmeeting back to order at 4:09 p.m

Number 1450

CHAIR DYSON informed nenbers that an objection for discussion
pur poses needed to be withdrawn to [ Arendnent 1].

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON wi t hdrew her obj ecti on.

CHAIR DYSON again asked whether there was any objection to
Amendnent 1. There being no objection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunber 1470
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked about the multiple fiscal notes.

CHAIR DYSON explained that it is wthin the purview of the
Speaker [of the House] to decide [on a fiscal note]. The
commttee is providing the Speaker with a synthesis of the
information it has received about the fiscal notes.

Number 1505

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to report CSHB 407 [version 22-
LS1389\ P, Lauterbach, 4/11/02], as anmended, out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG obj ected for discussion purposes. He
said he wasn't confortable including the three fiscal notes, and
woul d prefer to adopt the zero fiscal note. He concurred with
Representative Coghill and suggested overhead could be greatly
offset, with a possible result of zero cost or at |east nuch
| ess cost than the departnent projects.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING then wthdrew his objection, saying
al though the legislation doesn't go as far as he would like, he
wanted to nove it forward. He reiterated that he didn't agree
with the departnment's fiscal notes, which are higher than what
he woul d expect.

Nunmber 1573

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA objected to the notion, explaining that
she believes the state isn't prepared to deal with sonme of the
problenms it is facing, and that the plan needs to be in place
prior to meking such choices. In response to Representative
Stevens, she reiterated that she objected to meking a choice
Wi t hout having the tools to do it.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Dyson, Stevens,
Kohring, Joule, WIlson, and Coghill voted to nove CSHB 407
[version 22-LS1389\P, Lauterbach, 4/11/02, as anended] from
committee. [ Representative Cissna abstained.] Ther ef or e,

CSHB 407(HES) was noved out of the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmttee by a vote of 6-0.

HCR 23-LEG SLATI VE COW TTEES: SPLI T HOUSE HESS

CHAIR DYSON announced the next order of Dbusiness, HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO. 23, Proposing anmendnments to Uniform
Rule 20 of the Alaska State Legislature; and providing for an
effective date for the anmendnents.

Nunmber 1660

KAREN M CARTHY, Staff to Representative Con Bunde, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HCR 23 on behalf of the House Speci al
Commttee on Education (HEDU), the resolution's sponsor. She
expl ai ned that HCR 23 would amend the Uniform Rules to create a
standi ng House education commttee; it would reconfigure the
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee
(HHES) to be the House health and social services commttee; and
the Senate commttees would remain unchanged. She noted that
t he change would be in effect for the next |egislative session.

M5. MCARTHY informed nenbers that Representative GQuess had
first introduced this mtter as HCR 11; the House Special
Comm ttee on Education, upon review, had decided to sponsor it
as HCR 23. She said it was felt that HEDU has proven benefi ci al
to the legislative process by facilitating focused commttee

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 11, 2002



work on education bills and issues. She offered that education
issues are conplex and very inportant, and that the workload
related to education has becone significant and would benefit
fromthe full attention of a permanent, standing commttee.

M5. MCARTHY noted that 1issues such as the Hgh Schoo

Graduation Qualifying Exam (HSGQE), school designators, teacher
shortage, and education reform in general have benefited from
the full attention given them in the special commttee [HEDU]
w thout the potential scheduling challenges that HHES faces.
She reported that HCR 23 is supported by the Association of

Al aska School Boards and the Alaska Council of  School
Adm ni strators. She expressed hope that nenbers would nove HCR
23 out of conmttee. She added that certainly no offense was

ever intended to HHES and the good work of its nenbers.
Number 1732

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), testified in support of [HCR 23]. He expl ai ned
that AASB has a long and positive history of working wth HHES
The past two years, AASB has been working with HEDU and has had

a successful and positive relationship as well. He said that
due to the specificity of education issues, AASB believes [HCR
23] to be an [appropriate neasure]. He nentioned the workl oad

of HHES and indicated a standing education commttee would all ow
both conmittees sufficient time to focus on their respective
i ssues, which would be of great value to the state.

Number 1800

CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. McCarthy about the zero fiscal note and
the fact that each conmittee requires a committee aide.

M5. McCARTHY replied that the rationale for the fiscal note was
that no additional noney would be necessary beyond what is
currently being spent. Already there are two conmmttee aides,
one for HHES and one for HEDU, therefore, renoving education
from HHES woul d not require enploying additional staff.

Number 1881
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that so nmany issues addressed in

creating an education budget cross over into health and human
services policies. He added:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 11, 2002



Many of the titles now are comng right out of ... the
federal [Departnent of Health and] Human Services, and
many of the state laws are comng right out of what

we're doing in health and social services. And we
find them conbined there - everything from childcare
to many of the mandates ... that really are going to

be in the health and social service area.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Ms. MCarthy whether this subject
was di scussed i n HEDU heari ngs.

M5. McCARTHY responded no, not that she recalled. She suggested
menbers of HHES [who al so serve on HEDU] m ght renenber

Nunber 1918

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG referenced Ms. MCarthy's discussion of
the zero fiscal note and suggested there would be costs in
addition to the commttee aide, such as for supplies, conputer
equi pnent, teleconference personnel, transcribers, and other
costs. He asked whet her those were considered, for exanple.

M5. MCARTHY replied that those costs already exist. For
instance, the recording secretary [position in House Records]
al ready exists, although she was uncertain about the workload of
the recording secretaries and whether another position would be
warranted if a standing education commttee were established.

Nunber 1987
REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG sai d:

It's not that the extra costs wouldn't be worth it;
perhaps it would be, if we could have a separate
commttee that's focusing just on education issues,
and it mght very well be worth incurring sone extra
costs if this fiscal note wasn't correct and there
woul d be sone overhead that was not reflected there.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG added that he thought the [legislative]
processes should be nore streamined; this is being sought at
the agency |Ievel. He explained that the intent of a bil

several years ago that he'd sponsored was to streamine the
processes of what then were the Departnent of Comunity and
Econom c Devel opnent and the Departnent of Conmmunity and
Regi onal Affairs. He said he espouses streamining and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 11, 2002



suggested this mght be acconplished by having education
remai ni ng i n HHES.

M5. MCARTHY offered that the sponsors of HCR 23 feel that
education is a sufficiently conplex and inportant area of work,
as is the health and social services area. Considering that all
of the necessary pieces are currently in place and both areas
are very inportant, she suggested it would be beneficial to the
state to [establish education as a standing commttee].

M5. MCARTHY addressed efficiency, reporting that since the
beginning of the Twenty-Second Al aska State Legislature, 119
bills have been referred to HHES, 42 bills to HEDU, and 33 bills
to both committees. Wiile sone [bills] may have benefited from
a second perspective, she suggested nenbers mght not know
whether it would have been nore efficient to avoid double
referrals for those 33 bills.

Number 2081

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA questi oned whether the |egislature had the
"human power" to acconplish [having another standing conmittee].
She suggested that a test run has been done and asked if it has
been problematic for people to work this into their schedul es.

M5. MCARTHY replied that it hadn't appeared to be a problem
The HEDU nenbers have been in attendance for every neeting for
whi ch they have been in town, she reported.

Number 2115

MR. ROSE pointed out that the U S. Congress passed the 1,180-
page [reauthorization] of the Elenentary and Secondary Education
Act (ESEA), the full inpact of which remains undeterm ned. He
said many predict that the inpact of this [Act] to public
education will be akin to the inpact of the IDEA [Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act]. He suggested the need is
great to focus on educational issues with ESEA s passage and the
upcom ng reaut horization of |DEA

Nunmber 2146

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that she has had the privilege
of serving on both commttees, as have other nenbers. She said,
"I can't imgine what one chairman would have done with all
this." She explained that both chairs had [a heavy workl oad].
She suggested that with the upconmng issues in both conmttees,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 11, 2002



sonet hing needs to be reorgani zed. She added, "I firmy agree
that it should be pulled out into tw commttees."” She
explained that this doesn't reflect poorly on HHES. Si mpl vy,
many issues need to be addressed. She recomended passing the
resol ution.

Nunber 2196

REPRESENTATI VE  STEVENS noted that he has served wth
Representatives WIlson and Joule on both HHES and HEDU. He
offered his inpression that this is a natural separation; but
acknow edged his lack of an historical point of reference. He
said he didn't know how HHES would expand [otherw se], and
nmenti oned perhaps adding an hour to those neetings because of so

much to address there. He added that the education committee
has addressed the Foundation [Fornula], the exit exam teacher
shortage issues, and student |oan prograns. He observed that

this represents an enornous anmount of the budget and the
responsibility that |egislators have. He expressed appreciation
for his opportunity to work wth the [health and social
services] commttee but suggested that education issues m ght be
nore than [HHES] wi shes to handle. He said, "It seemed to work
quite well, and | would think it would be a natural thing to
have separate standing commttees."”

Nunber 2243

CHAIR DYSON noted the practice of the legislature to have
special commttees, sone of which have continued for quite a
while, to handle special |oads and special issues; he cited the
House Special Commttee on G| and Gas and the House Speci al
Committee on Fisheries as exanples and indicated their
[duration] is appropriate. The need for these conmttees waxes
and wanes wth economc and cultural conditions, he said,
cautioning against taking lightly the step of [making them
standing conmittees]. He said he'd be a strong voice in support
of continuing the House Special Conmttee on Education, should
the need continue, but was unwilling to create a standing
commttee based on two years' experience, when one hadn't
existed in the prior forty-two years.

Nunber 2300
CHAIR DYSON also pointed out the danger in a conmmttee, when
focused on one specific topic of special interest to nenbers, of

becom ng an "advocacy group." He said one of his nmentors on the
Anchorage Assenbly had said that as inportant as education is,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 11, 2002



it is one of the functions that governnent is required to supply
and shouldn't get a disproportionate voice. He expl ained that
this is in spite of how inportant he and the people of Al aska
bel i eve education to be.

TAPE 02-31, SIDE B
Number 2333

CHAIR DYSON observed that having too nmany conmttee referrals
can slow a bill's progress, and is sonetinmes used as a nethod to
do just that. He said the creation of [HEDU was a deliberate
nove for a special, foreseen need; he indicated that was w sely
done, and spoke in favor of the flexibility. He reiterated that
he is unwilling to put this comrittee into law [as a standing
commttee] after just two years.

CHAI R DYSON offered his opinion that if the House has many nore
commttees than the Senate, a "disconnect" occurs, nmaking it
nore difficult for joint hearings to take place. He suggested
that a largely parallel structure in both bodies works well; the
greater the departure from this structure, the nore difficulty
i s added. Di sagreeing with the premse for a zero fiscal note,
he said the special conmttee is not a "given," whereas [the

costs will be certain] if the commttee is put into state |aw
Furthernore, he said he couldn't agree with a zero fiscal note
because costs wll be incurred for the commttee, the aide,

transcription, supplies, and other incremental costs.

Nunber 2249

CHAIR DYSON turned attention to the overlap of education and
heal t h- and- soci al - servi ces i ssues. He observed that early
devel opment was, rightly or wongly, included in the departnent
of educati on. He indicated that the areas of juvenile justice
and famly and vyouth services greatly inpact, and are
intertwined with, education. As exanples, he nentioned nurses

in the schools who are nandatory reporters [of abuse] and who
deliver health services in the school context, as well as the
Smart Start program

CHAI R DYSON suggested this has worked well this year in |arge
part because of the excellent relationship between the two
commttees' chairs. Both chairs were in support [of the special
commttee] and agreed with the Speaker [of the House] that any

bill referred to one comittee could be [upon the chair's
request] referred to the other commttee. However, that m ght
not always be the case. Speci fying that he would vote "no" on

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 11, 2002



this resolution, he said that if he is reelected and there is a
need for the special conmttee, he will be a strong voice for
continuing the [House Special Commttee on Education].

Number 2145

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA suggested that an additional consideration
is the long-range fiscal plan, whether one is established or
not . If no plan is created, she offered, "W're |ooking at
maybe dismantling a lot of things." She indicated that should
the [legislature] take responsibility for the state and becone
accountable to the public that is paying for state services,
sone serious conmtnents need to be made to address [health-and-
soci al -services and education] issues. She noted that sone
bills [heard by HHES] have indicated this as well. She
hi ghlighted the inportance of addressing why Alaska is rated so
low in national studies regarding health. She offered that this
should not be this way; to her, this indicates failure to the
publ i c.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA observed that another issue, one just
dealt with by HHES, is nedical services and that the state has

not neasured up to what it was doing in [1984]. She said the
three groups facing the nost jeopardy right now are the small -
busi ness people, the nonprofits, and the self-enployed. Those

require tinme commtnents in the state. She said she would vote
"yes" for the resolution, but conveyed respect for the "very
t hought - provoki ng and good comments of the chair.”

Number 2053

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked that the issue of cost be addressed
again. The costs of the conmittee will continue whether it is a
special conmttee or a standing commttee, he offered. He
pointed out that the chair had indicated his support for a
continuing special comittee. He said the problens are not
going away; neither are the education needs. Therefore, the
| egi slature's focus on these natters would not go away. He said
a cost wll be incurred for either a standing or special
committee. He also said he believes the legislature wll
continue to need an education commttee, which is why he would
like to see it becone pernmanent, thereby relieving HHES of sone
responsibilities so its nmenbers can be nore effective.

Nunber 1997

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noved to report HCR 23 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Cissna, Joule,
Wlson, and Stevens voted to nove HCR 23 from commttee.
Representatives Dyson, Kohring, and Coghill voted against it.

Therefore, HCR 23 was reported from the House Health, Education
and Social Services Standing Commttee by a vote of 4-3.

HB 464- SCHOOL DI STRI CT CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

[ Contains discussion relating to SB 346, the conpanion bill,
changes for which were incorporated into Version P of HB 464 on
3/ 26/ 02]

Nunber 1900

CHAI R DYSON announced the final order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 464, "An Act relating to statewide school district
correspondence study prograns.” [Before the commttee was

Version P, 22-1LS1494\P, Ford, 3/18/02, adopted as a work draft
on 3/26/02.]

CHAI R DYSON expressed his belief that the inpetus for this bil

was a concern about the regul ations [proposed by] the Departnent
of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED). Those regul ations
have been nodified, but there isn't conplete satisfaction. He
offered his personal opinion that sone staff people within EED
and in the educational est abl i shnent are uneasy about
alternatives in education. The initial regul ati ons were
contrary to the interests of parent-directed education, he said.

CHAIR DYSON also offered his belief that the bill's going
forward continues protection for parent-led education and

m nimzes [ EED s] capacity to negatively interfere in
alternative education. He noted that the conmttee had heard
testi nony and done everything but vote on the bill. He reported

that the sponsor [Representative James] had asked for it to nove
forward, and that it wuld be heard by the House Special
Conmi ttee on Educati on.

Nunber 1772

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG noved to report CSHB 464 [version 22-
LS1494\P, Ford, 3/18/02] out of conmttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 464(HES) was noved out of the House Health
Educati on and Social Services Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:41 p.m [For mnutes on the overview
presentation from the Al aska Suicide Prevention Council heard
jointly with the Senate Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Commttee, see the 3:03 p.m mnutes for this date.]

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 11, 2002



